

# Navigating Uncertainty: An Analysis of the US Movie Industry in a Transforming Landscape

Consultancy Report

Prepared by:

Google - Gemini Deep Research

**Prepared for:** 

A24

#### **Contents**

C	Contents				
1	Exec	utive Summary	1		
2	Indu	·			
	2.1 2.2	Sensitivity to Financial Incentives	1		
		Cost of Production	2		
		Financing and Operational Risks	2		
		Investment Risks	2		
		Impact of Industry Strikes	3		
		Environmental Factors (Wildfires)	3		
	2.8	State Response (Tax Credits)	3		
3	Decoding Blockbusters: Key Factors Contributing to Movie Financial Success in the US Market				
		Marketing and Casting	3		
		Release Timing and Critical Reception	4		
		Intrinsic Film Characteristics (Genre, Rating, Sequels)	4		
4	The Streaming Tidal Wave: Reshaping Distribution Models and Audience Behavior				
		Disruption of Traditional Distribution	5		
		Altered Audience Behavior	5		
	4.3	Streaming Platforms as Producers	5		
5	The Pandemic's Shadow: Assessing the Impact of COVID-19 on the US Movie Industry				
		Production Impacts and Safety Protocols	6		
		Distribution Strategy Shifts	6		
	5.3	Box Office Performance Collapse and Recovery	6		
6		• • •	6		
		Dominant Genres (Action, Adventure, Drama, Comedy)	7		
7	Giants vs. Innovators: Comparing Business Models of Major US Movie Studios and Independent Companies				
	7.1	Major Studio Model	7		
	7.2	Independent Company Model (e.g., A24)	8		
8	The A24 Approach: Deconstructing a Modern Indie Powerhouse				
	8.1	Production Philosophy	8		
		Distribution Deals	8		
		Budgetary Model	8		
	84	Marketing and Distribution Strategies	8		

9	The A24 Success Story: Analyzing the Critical Acclaim and Profitability of Films			
	like Everything Everywhere All at Once			
	9.1 Factors Driving Critical Acclaim			
	9.2 Case Study: Everything Everywhere All at Once	9		
10	Measuring Movie Performance: Understanding Financial Metrics and Influencing			
	Factors			
	10.1 Key Financial Metrics (Adjusted Gross, ROI, etc.)	10		
	10.2 Factors Influencing Metrics	10		
11	Conclusion and Strategic Outlook	11		
Re	References			

#### 1 Executive Summary

The US movie industry is currently navigating a period of significant transformation, marked by a complex interplay of financial pressures, technological disruptions, and evolving consumer behaviors. This report provides a comprehensive analysis of the industry's current state, examining the key financial risks it faces, the factors that contribute to a movie's financial success, and the profound impact of streaming services. The study further investigates the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on production, distribution, and box office performance, alongside an exploration of current genre trends and their profitability. A comparative analysis of major US movie studios and independent companies like A24 sheds light on their distinct business models and market positions. The report delves into A24's specific approach, including its production strategies, distribution deals, and typical budget ranges, culminating in a case study of the critical acclaim and profit margins of its film "Everything Everywhere All at Once." Finally, the analysis considers the key financial performance metrics used in the industry and the factors that influence them, offering a forward-looking perspective on the challenges and opportunities that lie ahead for the US movie industry.

### 2 The Fragile State of Hollywood: Unpacking Financial Risks in the US Movie Industry

The US movie industry, particularly the production hub of Los Angeles, is facing a confluence of financial risks that threaten its long-term stability[1]. A temporary increase in shoot days during the fourth quarter of 2024 offered a brief respite after eleven consecutive quarters of decline, yet the underlying structural challenges persist[1]. While feature film production saw an impressive surge in this period, its overall output remains significantly below the five-year average, indicating a recovery that is perhaps more reflective of delayed projects than a fundamental resurgence[1]. The dramatic fall in reality television production over nine consecutive quarters suggests a more permanent shift of unscripted content to regions offering more attractive financial incentives, impacting local economies and employment in Los Angeles[1]. This highlights the sensitivity of production location decisions to financial benefits.

#### 2.1 Sensitivity to Financial Incentives

The allure of more favorable tax incentives in other regions presents a significant financial risk to Hollywood[1]. Major studios are increasingly choosing to film projects in locations like Canada, the United Kingdom, and US states such as Georgia and New York, which offer compelling financial advantages[1]. This trend intensifies the competition for film production, leading to a direct loss of projects and the substantial investments they bring to the traditional filmmaking center[1]. The increasing cost of production in Los Angeles further exacerbates this issue[1].

#### 2.2 Cost of Production

Rising labor costs, stringent permitting regulations, and general inflation contribute to a more expensive filming environment[1]. The hike in permitting fees by FilmLA adds another layer to the financial burden, making Los Angeles a less attractive option for productions operating on tight budgets[1]. Some industry observers suggest that escalating union wages are also

contributing to this competitive disadvantage, pushing productions to seek more cost-effective locations[1].

#### 2.3 Lack of Originality and Management Issues

Beyond financial incentives, a perceived lack of originality and ineffective management practices within the industry pose a considerable financial risk[1]. Critics argue that a preference for formulaic content and insular hiring practices stifle creativity, potentially leading to audience disengagement and underperforming films and television shows[1]. This creative stagnation, while not an immediate cost, can erode the long-term value and appeal of Hollywood's output, impacting its financial viability[1].

#### 2.4 Financing and Operational Risks

The film and television sectors are inherently characterized by high costs coupled with uncertain revenue streams and lengthy operational cycles[2]. The unpredictable relationship between expenses and income creates a volatile financial landscape[2]. The nature of film and television companies, often described as having "light assets," further contributes to financing risks[2]. The reliance on intangible assets like intellectual property and talent necessitates significant upfront financing to sustain cash flow throughout the extended production and operational periods[2]. Securing such large sums can be particularly challenging given the inherent uncertainties of the industry[2]. Operational risks also arise from the extended development cycles, leading to substantial accounts receivable that may be difficult to convert to cash[2]. Long-term receivables are particularly vulnerable to becoming doubtful accounts if secondary sales prove challenging[2]. The lengthy revenue cycle inherent in film and television production creates significant cash flow risks[2]. The time lag between incurring production costs and realizing revenue, often compounded by credit terms, can lead to imbalances in cash flow, a risk that is amplified during market downturns[2].

#### 2.5 Investment Risks

Investing in film projects carries inherent risks due to the unpredictable nature of audience reception and the wide fluctuations in box office, streaming viewership, and home entertainment sales[3]. Production delays, caused by factors such as scheduling conflicts or weather issues, can lead to budget overruns, further jeopardizing a project's profitability[3]. Unexpected costs can also escalate budgets beyond initial projections, diminishing potential returns[3]. Independent films often face significant hurdles in securing distribution deals, which can severely limit their reach and ability to generate revenue[3]. The film industry's intensely competitive nature, with numerous releases vying for audience attention, makes it challenging for any single film to achieve standout success[3]. Furthermore, the ever-evolving tastes of consumers add another layer of unpredictability to the financial landscape[3]. Financial instability within film companies themselves, marked by practices like mergers involving shell corporations and falling stock prices, also contributes to the overall financial risks within the US movie industry[2]. Weak short-term solvency, unreasonable capital structures, and fluctuating cash flow in individual companies can amplify the inherent risks of the industry[2].

#### 2.6 Impact of Industry Strikes

The landscape of film production has been significantly shaped by the 2023 strikes involving the Writers Guild of America (WGA) and the Screen Actors Guild – American Federation of Television and Radio Artists (SAG-AFTRA)[4]. These strikes led to a substantial decrease in the number of projects being greenlit, impacting overall production levels[4]. Data from the second quarter of 2024 reveals a 20% drop in production spending by Hollywood studios compared to the same period in 2022, underscoring the financial repercussions of this downturn[4]. The United States experienced an even more pronounced 40% decline in production volume from pre-strike levels, indicating a significant disruption to the industry's output[4]. The Greater Los Angeles Area, a key indicator of Hollywood's production activity, saw a 36.4% reduction in shoot days compared to its five-year average, illustrating the widespread impact of these slowdowns[4]. While some of this reduction can be attributed to a correction following previous high production volumes and the irregularities caused by the pandemic, the overall decrease signifies a tangible financial risk to the region's economy[4].

#### 2.7 Environmental Factors (Wildfires)

Compounding these challenges, devastating wildfires in Greater Los Angeles have further destabilized the industry[1]. These natural disasters have displaced film workers, damaged critical infrastructure, and disrupted planned shoots, leading to further delays and cancellations[1]. The economic toll on local businesses and the destruction of iconic filming locations only exacerbate the industry's existing structural issues, potentially leading to even deeper declines in production in 2025[1].

#### 2.8 State Response (Tax Credits)

In response to these multifaceted financial risks, California's Governor has proposed a significant expansion of the state's film and television tax credit program, aiming to attract and retain more productions within the state[1]. The effectiveness of these measures in reversing the current trends remains to be seen[1].

### 3 Decoding Blockbusters: Key Factors Contributing to Movie Financial Success in the US Market

In the high-stakes environment of the US movie industry, where nearly \$93 billion was valued in 2022, strategic marketing and casting decisions stand as paramount factors in determining a film's financial success[6]. These critical choices significantly influence a movie's capacity to recoup its production costs and ultimately generate profit[6]. A well-crafted marketing campaign can generate substantial buzz and cultivate audience anticipation, while the strategic selection of cast members, particularly those with established fan bases, can significantly enhance a film's marketability and drive strong initial box office numbers[6].

#### 3.1 Marketing and Casting

The timing of a film's release and its reception by critics also play pivotal roles in its financial performance[6]. Releasing a movie during peak moviegoing seasons, such as holidays and

summer, can significantly boost its potential audience[6]. Furthermore, positive reviews from critics, often aggregated on platforms like Rotten Tomatoes, act as crucial indicators of a film's quality and can strongly influence audience decisions[6]. A wider theatrical release, ensuring the film is shown on a greater number of screens, also directly contributes to higher revenue[6].

#### 3.2 Release Timing and Critical Reception

Intrinsic characteristics of a film, such as its genre and MPAA rating, also have a notable impact on its success[6]. Films rated G or PG, indicating family-friendly content, often achieve greater financial success[6]. Additionally, sequels, which benefit from pre-existing audience familiarity and established fan bases, tend to perform well financially[6]. Certain genres, such as action and superhero films, consistently attract large audiences, contributing to their profitability[6].

#### 3.3 Intrinsic Film Characteristics (Genre, Rating, Sequels)

The presence of well-known and successful actors, often referred to as "star power," is another significant determinant of a film's financial outcome[6]. While the mere nomination for or winning of Academy Awards by actors might not always statistically correlate with box office revenue, the track record of an actor in terms of their films' average lifetime gross revenue does hold statistical significance[8]. Similarly, the director of a film can also wield considerable influence over its financial success[10].

The extent of a film's screen coverage and its distribution by a major distributor are statistically significant factors in increasing box office revenue[8]. Major distributors possess established relationships with theater chains and have extensive marketing resources, enabling them to secure wider releases and implement more effective promotional campaigns, thereby maximizing a film's exposure and revenue potential[8].

While the production budget of a film can influence its potential for financial success, it is not always a direct correlation[10]. Higher budgets can allow for enhanced production quality and the involvement of prominent talent, but compelling storytelling and effective marketing can lead to significant returns even for films with lower budgets[11]. Strong word-of-mouth among audiences and positive audience ratings, such as those found on IMDb, play a crucial role in driving a film's sustained success beyond its initial release[6]. Recommendations from other viewers and high audience scores build trust and encourage further viewership.

Films that are part of established franchises or are sequels tend to exhibit higher profitability and return on investment[9]. These films benefit from loyal fan bases and a pre-existing level of audience interest, reducing the risk associated with original properties[9]. Effective marketing strategies that optimize resource allocation and leverage social media engagement are increasingly vital for a film's financial performance[6]. Films that generate significant buzz and engagement on social media platforms often outperform initial box office projections[15]. Furthermore, the performance of a film in international markets is a critical factor, with over 70% of global box office sales originating from outside the US[15]. Films with broad cross-cultural appeal have a significantly greater revenue potential in this global marketplace.

### 4 The Streaming Tidal Wave: Reshaping Distribution Models and Audience Behavior

The advent and proliferation of streaming services have fundamentally reshaped the US movie industry, most notably by disrupting traditional distribution channels[17]. Platforms such as Netflix, Amazon Prime Video, and Disney+ have offered a direct alternative to the established theatrical release model, thereby challenging the long-standing dominance of movie theaters[17]. This shift provides consumers with a direct pathway to content, bypassing the traditional intermediaries of theatrical exhibition and physical media sales[17].

#### 4.1 Disruption of Traditional Distribution

A significant consequence of the rise of streaming is the increasing prevalence of simultaneous releases, where movies premiere in theaters and on streaming platforms concurrently, or with significantly shortened theatrical windows[17]. In some instances, films are released directly to streaming services, bypassing theatrical exhibition altogether[17]. This transformation has rendered traditional metrics for gauging a movie's success less relevant and has compelled industry stakeholders to re-evaluate how they assess the value and performance of films[17]. The exclusivity once associated with theatrical release has diminished, directly impacting box office revenue and altering consumer expectations regarding when and how they can access new movies[17].

#### 4.2 Altered Audience Behavior

Streaming services have profoundly altered audience behavior by offering unprecedented convenience and on-demand access to a vast library of movies at any time[17]. This ease of access has contributed to a notable decline in movie theater attendance as more consumers opt for the comfort and affordability of watching films from their homes[17]. The simplicity and cost-effectiveness of streaming have made it a preferred entertainment option for a significant portion of the viewing public[17].

#### 4.3 Streaming Platforms as Producers

Furthermore, streaming platforms have evolved beyond mere content distribution to become significant producers of original content[17]. This investment in original programming has led to a surge in diverse storytelling and has created opportunities for underrepresented voices in the film industry[17]. The competition among streaming services to attract and retain subscribers fuels a constant demand for exclusive and varied content[17].

#### 5 The Pandemic's Shadow: Assessing the Impact of COVID-19 on the US Movie Industry

The COVID-19 pandemic cast a long shadow over nearly every facet of life, and the US movie industry was no exception, suffering an estimated loss exceeding US\$5 billion in box office revenue in 2020 alone[32]. The pandemic's onset led to the indefinite postponement of numerous highly anticipated film releases[32]. The abrupt halt in production necessitated

the implementation of stringent health and safety protocols on film sets to mitigate the risk of COVID-19 transmission[32]. These measures included the establishment of safety zones, mandatory use of personal protective equipment (PPE), and regular testing for cast and crew, significantly altering traditional production practices[32].

#### **5.1 Production Impacts and Safety Protocols**

The shift to remote work posed challenges for studio operations, particularly in pre-production phases such as casting and set design[35]. However, post-production activities like editing and marketing saw increased efficiency through the adoption of virtual workplace technologies[35]. The overall impact of the pandemic, coupled with subsequent industry strikes, is reflected in a 20% decrease in production spending by Hollywood studios in the second quarter of 2024 compared to the same period in 2022, indicating a sustained downturn in industry activity[4].

#### 5.2 Distribution Strategy Shifts

With the widespread closure of theaters, many films were released directly onto over-the-top (OTT) platforms, leading to a period of uncertainty for filmmakers[34]. Several major film releases had their theatrical runs cut short and were subsequently made available on digital platforms[33]. Studios experimented with unprecedented distribution models, including simultaneous releases in theaters and on streaming services[33]. A notable example is Universal's "Trolls World Tour," which bypassed theatrical release entirely and premiered as a digital rental, generating substantial revenue and prompting discussions about the viability of such strategies in the future[33].

#### 5.3 Box Office Performance Collapse and Recovery

The impact on box office performance in the US was particularly severe. The closure of movie theaters in March 2020 led to a near-total collapse of box office earnings[36]. Global box office revenue plummeted from \$44.5 billion in 2019 to a mere \$16.3 billion in 2020[34]. Even after the widespread availability of vaccines, box office numbers have not returned to pre-pandemic levels. Projections for the North American box office in 2024 indicate a 24% shortfall compared to 2019 figures[36]. When adjusted for ticket price inflation, this deficit widens to over 35%[36]. The 2023 Hollywood writers' strike further contributed to this situation by creating a scarcity of blockbuster releases in 2024[36]. The pandemic appears to have fundamentally altered consumer habits, with many viewers now preferring the convenience of at-home streaming[36]. Movie theaters and studios face the ongoing challenge of finding effective strategies to re-attract audiences who have grown accustomed to consuming video content in their own homes[36].

### 6 Genre Dynamics: Exploring Current Trends and Profitability in the US Market

Historically, adventure and action films have consistently proven to be the most profitable genres in the US box office, commanding significant market shares[40]. In 2023, action films led the way, capturing 34% of the total box office revenue, with adventure films following closely behind[40]. The enduring success of these genres can be attributed to their broad appeal,

often driven by thrilling narratives, cutting-edge special effects, and established franchises that resonate with both domestic and international audiences[40].

#### 6.1 Dominant Genres (Action, Adventure, Drama, Comedy)

Drama and comedy also maintain their status as consistent performers in the US market, generating substantial box office revenue over the years[40]. These genres cater to a wide spectrum of audience preferences and have demonstrated the capacity for success across various budget levels, exploring relatable human experiences or offering lighthearted entertainment[40]. The horror genre has witnessed a notable evolution, transitioning from a niche interest to achieving large-scale commercial success[40]. In contrast, musicals have experienced a decline in popularity in recent years[40]. Thriller and suspense films continue to hold a steady presence within the market as well[41].

#### **6.2** Evolving Genres (Horror, Musicals)

The rise of streaming platforms has significantly influenced how audiences consume various genres[40]. Streaming services provide access to an extensive array of genres, including those that previously had limited theatrical exposure, thereby broadening audience horizons and expanding consumer preferences[40]. This increased accessibility might also impact audience expectations for theatrical releases, potentially making them more selective about the types of films they choose to see on the big screen.

### 7 Giants vs. Innovators: Comparing Business Models of Major US Movie Studios and Independent Companies

Major US movie studios, often referred to as the "Big Five," typically operate under highly structured business models as integral parts of larger media conglomerates[47]. Their primary focus is on achieving consistent profitability through a broad slate of mainstream projects aimed at mass audiences[47]. While historically controlling all aspects of film production, from initial funding to final distribution, these studios increasingly function as financial backers and distributors, with the actual production often outsourced to independent companies[48]. Their core activities encompass project development, securing financing, orchestrating extensive marketing campaigns, and managing merchandising efforts[49].

#### 7.1 Major Studio Model

These major studios command a significant share of both the US and international box office revenue, leveraging their well-established and extensive global distribution networks[49]. Their marketing reach is considerable, spanning multiple platforms to ensure maximum visibility for their releases[47]. The content they primarily focus on tends to be mainstream, encompassing high-budget blockbusters, established franchises, sequels, and remakes, all designed for broad commercial appeal[47]. Financially, these studios benefit from substantial resources, drawing capital from their own reserves, investments from their parent companies, and external financing through banks, private investors, or collaborative ventures[47]. This robust financial structure allows them to undertake large-scale, commercially oriented projects with significant budgets[47].

#### 7.2 Independent Company Model (e.g., A24)

In contrast, independent companies, exemplified by A24, often adopt more flexible and adaptable business models[47]. Their operations frequently prioritize creative input and the development of innovative storytelling, often working with more constrained budgets[47]. A24, for instance, began as a distribution company, focusing on unique narratives that were often overlooked by the major studios[54]. Over time, A24 has diversified its operations to include production and international sales[54]. Their business model centers on acquiring distinctive content, frequently from independent filmmakers, and distributing it across a variety of platforms[56].

### 8 The A24 Approach: Deconstructing a Modern Indie Powerhouse

#### 8.1 Production Philosophy

A24 has distinguished itself in the film industry through its unique approach to movie production, characterized by a strong commitment to high-quality, auteur-driven films[56]. The company places a significant emphasis on the filmmaker's individual vision and creative autonomy, often collaborating with emerging talents and supporting narratives that are emotionally resonant and deeply personal[54]. This collaborative environment fosters risk-taking and the exploration of unconventional ideas, resulting in a portfolio of films that are both distinctive and critically acclaimed[54].

#### 8.2 Distribution Deals

A24 has also established a network of strategic distribution deals across various platforms to maximize the reach and impact of its films[55]. Initially, A24 partnered with Amazon Prime Video, securing exclusive video-on-demand rights for its titles[55]. The company also maintained a distribution agreement with Showtime until November 2022[62]. In a significant recent development, A24 entered into a multi-year deal with Warner Bros. Discovery in December 2023, which will see A24's theatrical releases becoming exclusively available on the Max streaming service after their theatrical run[65].

#### 8.3 Budgetary Model

Compared to the often exorbitant budgets of major US movie studios, A24 typically operates within a much more constrained financial framework[53]. While major studios frequently allocate hundreds of millions of dollars to single blockbuster productions[52], A24's production budgets generally range from \$1 million to \$25 million, with notable exceptions like "Civil War" which had a budget of \$50 million or more[53]. This lower budget model enables A24 to take greater creative risks; the success of even one film can potentially finance a significant portion of their annual production slate[55].

#### 8.4 Marketing and Distribution Strategies

A hallmark of A24's approach is its innovative and highly-curated strategies for film distribution and marketing[54]. The company places a strong emphasis on its online presence, actively engaging with audiences in meaningful ways[54]. Their marketing efforts often revolve around

creating viral and interactive content designed to generate buzz, effectively utilizing social media platforms to reach their target demographic, primarily millennials and Generation Z, in a cost-efficient manner[54]. A24 frequently forgoes traditional advertising outlets, instead allocating a significant portion of its marketing budget to online platforms and crafting unique campaigns tailored to each film, sometimes even employing unconventional tactics like creating fake social media profiles for movie characters[60]. The company also strategically leverages partnerships with film festivals and develops exclusive merchandise to cultivate brand loyalty and a strong sense of community among its fanbase[71]. This savvy and unorthodox approach to marketing allows A24 to generate considerable attention and reach its intended audience without the massive financial resources typically associated with major studio marketing campaigns[54].

## 9 The A24 Success Story: Analyzing the Critical Acclaim and Profitability of Films like *Everything Everywhere All at Once*

The critical acclaim garnered by A24 films can be attributed to several key factors, including the production of distinctive and authentic stories that often deviate from mainstream Hollywood conventions[60]. A24 champions bold and original narratives that are both thought-provoking and challenge established norms in filmmaking[61]. This commitment to unique artistic visions resonates strongly with critics and audiences seeking alternatives to more formulaic cinema[60]. A significant element of A24's success lies in its focus on auteur filmmakers, providing them with a platform for original and audacious storytelling and granting them considerable creative freedom to explore their individual visions[54]. This trust in the talent of filmmakers often results in the creation of unique and high-quality productions that earn critical recognition[54].

#### 9.1 Factors Driving Critical Acclaim

A24 has also successfully cultivated a brand that is synonymous with innovation and quality within the independent film sector[55]. The company's name and logo have become indicators of artistic integrity and creative risk-taking, carrying significant cultural weight and often acting as a "stamp of approval" for discerning moviegoers[54]. Furthermore, A24 employs effective and often unorthodox marketing strategies that generate buzz and engage audiences, particularly younger demographics, through innovative online campaigns and social media engagement[54]. This savvy approach to marketing contributes to the visibility and critical reception of their films[54]. Finally, A24 demonstrates a commitment to embracing diversity in both the content of their films and the filmmakers they collaborate with, a factor that has been widely recognized and praised, contributing to their critical success by resonating with a broader and more diverse audience[55].

#### 9.2 Case Study: Everything Everywhere All at Once

The film "Everything Everywhere All at Once" serves as a prime example of A24's ability to achieve both critical acclaim and significant profit margins. The film garnered widespread critical praise and received numerous accolades, including multiple Academy Awards, most notably Best Picture[55]. This high level of critical recognition significantly elevated the film's profile and contributed to its commercial success[55]. Notably, "Everything Everywhere All at

Once" achieved a remarkable box office performance relative to its production budget, grossing over \$140 million globally on a budget of just \$25 million[55]. This exceptional return on investment underscores the film's profitability as an independent production[55]. A24's effective marketing campaign for the film, which cleverly leveraged internet culture and social media platforms, played a crucial role in generating buzz and reaching its target audience[73]. The film's unique and engaging storytelling, which blended elements of science fiction, comedy, and drama while exploring themes of family and existentialism, deeply resonated with both audiences and critics, setting it apart from more conventional blockbuster fare[55]. The talented cast, led by Michelle Yeoh, and the directorial vision of "the Daniels," with whom A24 had a pre-existing relationship, further contributed to the film's overall quality and appeal[55].

### 10 Measuring Movie Performance: Understanding Financial Metrics and Influencing Factors

#### 10.1 Key Financial Metrics (Adjusted Gross, ROI, etc.)

Several key financial performance metrics are used to assess the success of movies in the US market. Adjusted worldwide gross reflects the total box office revenue a film earns across the globe, often taking into account inflation to facilitate comparisons over time[8]. This metric provides a comprehensive view of a film's theatrical commercial success on a global scale, with adjustments for inflation offering insights into its long-term popularity[8]. Return on investment (ROI) is a fundamental metric calculated as  $\frac{profit}{investment} \times 100$ [6]. In the context of film, ROI measures the efficiency with which invested capital is converted into profit, considering all revenue streams (box office, streaming, etc.) and all costs (production, marketing, etc.)[6]. A film typically needs to gross approximately double its budget to reach the break-even point, given distribution fees and marketing expenses[11]. Profit margin represents the percentage of revenue remaining after all expenses are deducted, offering a clear indication of a film's profitability relative to its total earnings. The multiplier, calculated as the ratio of a film's total gross to its opening weekend gross, indicates its staying power at the box office[12]. A high multiplier suggests positive word-of-mouth and sustained audience interest[12]. Studios also consider the lifetime value of a movie, encompassing revenue generated over an extended period from various sources beyond the initial theatrical release[79].

#### **10.2** Factors Influencing Metrics

Numerous factors influence these financial performance metrics. Strategic marketing and casting decisions are critical in driving audience interest and maximizing ROI[6]. Release timing, particularly during peak seasons, and positive critical reception significantly impact box office performance[6]. The genre of a film and its alignment with audience demand, along with effective targeting of the intended demographic, are also crucial[6]. While production budget plays a role, the quality of the story and execution are paramount, with low-budget films capable of achieving high ROI[6]. Positive word-of-mouth and social media buzz can significantly contribute to a film's sustained success[6]. Effective distribution strategies and wide screen coverage are essential for maximizing box office revenue[8]. The involvement of popular actors and acclaimed directors can also positively influence a film's marketability and financial performance[6]. Performance in international markets is increasingly vital for overall financial success[15]. Seasonal factors and the potential for sequels or franchise development also play a

significant role[6]. Broader economic conditions and technological disruptions, such as the rise of streaming, can also impact consumer spending and traditional revenue models[3]. Finally, regulatory changes within the film industry can affect the financial viability of projects[3].

#### 11 Conclusion and Strategic Outlook

The US movie industry faces significant financial risks stemming from decreasing production levels, escalating costs, and heightened competition from other regions. Achieving financial success hinges on a compelling narrative, astute marketing, and a deep understanding of audience preferences within a rapidly transforming entertainment landscape. Streaming services have profoundly reshaped distribution models and audience behavior, presenting both opportunities for wider reach and challenges to traditional revenue streams. The COVID-19 pandemic has left a lasting imprint on production, distribution, and consumer viewing habits, accelerating the shift towards digital consumption. Current genre trends reveal the enduring popularity of action and adventure films, the consistent performance of drama and comedy, and the growing prominence of niche genres through streaming platforms.

A comparative analysis highlights the contrasting business models of major studios, focused on mass-market blockbusters, and independent companies like A24, which prioritize auteur-driven content and innovative marketing. A24's unique approach, characterized by strategic distribution deals, lower budget ranges, and viral marketing, has enabled it to achieve both critical acclaim and commercial success. The case of "Everything Everywhere All at Once" exemplifies the potential for independent films to garner mainstream recognition and profitability through originality and strong execution. Understanding key financial performance metrics, such as adjusted worldwide gross and ROI, and the multitude of factors that influence them is crucial in navigating the increasingly complex and dynamic entertainment environment. Looking ahead, the US movie industry must continue to adapt to ongoing technological advancements, evolving consumer behaviors, and the need for innovation to ensure its future success and sustainability in a competitive global market.

#### References

- [1] Is Hollywood Worth Saving? The Harsh Reality Facing L.A. in 2025 ..., accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.filmtake.com/production/is-hollywood-worth-saving-the-harsh-reality-facing-l-a-in-2025/
- [2] (PDF) Analysis of Financial Risk Avoidance in the Film and TV Industry Based on Big Data, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.researchgate.net/publication/373896719\_Analysis\_of\_Financial\_Risk\_Avoidance\_in\_the\_Film\_and\_TV\_Industry\_Based\_on\_Big\_Data
- [3] What are the risks involved with investing in Film projects? Republic, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://republic.com/help/what-are-the-risks-involved-with-investing-in-film-projects
- [4] The State of Film & Television Production: 2024 in Review and Outlook for 2025, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.ep.com/blog/film-incentives-north-america-entertainment-industry-2024-review-look-ahead-2025/
- [5] 10 talking points for the US and international film industry in 2025 ..., accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.screendaily.com/features/10-talking-point s-for-the-us-and-international-film-industry-in-2025/5200 880.article
- [6] Modeling Influencing Factors in U.S. Film Success (1940-2024), accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.scirp.org/journal/paperinformation?paperid =138327
- [7] The Competitive Landscape of A24 Films CanvasBusinessModel ..., accessed on April 6, 2025, https://canvasbusinessmodel.com/blogs/competitors/a24-films-competitive-landscape
- [8] Factors Affecting the Financial Success of Motion Pictures: What is the Role of Star Power? University of St Andrews, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.st-andrews.ac.uk/~wwwecon/repecfiles/4/1501-ori.pdf
- [9] Breaking Down the Box Office: An Analysis of Film Profitability Factors UCONN Digital Commons University of Connecticut, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://digitalcommons.lib.uconn.edu/context/srhonors\_theses/article/1968/viewcontent/Thesis\_Essay\_ZWisnefsky.pdf
- [10] Determinants of Motion Picture Box Office and Profitability: An Interrelationship Approach | Request PDF ResearchGate, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.researchgate.net/publication/227220348\_Determinants\_of\_Motion\_Picture\_Box\_Office\_and\_Profitability\_An\_Interrelationship\_Approach
- [11] Probability and Profitability in the Movie Industry I by Andrewhhendricks I Medium, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://medium.com/@andrewhhendricks/probability-and-profitability-in-the-movie-industry-ee807f642c7a
- [12] How Movie Box Office Analysis Revolutionizes Modern Entertainment Number Analytics, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.numberanalytics.com/blog/movie-box-office-analysis-revolutionizes-entertainment

- [13] United States Movie Market Forecast Report and Competitive Analysis 2025-2033 Featuring Cinemark, Regal, CGV, AMC, Marcus, B&B, and Empire GlobeNewswire, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.globenewswire.com/news-release/2025/3/19/3045669/28124/en/United-States-Movie-Market-Forecast-Report-and-Competitive-Analysis-2025-2033-Featuring-Cinemark-Regal-CGV-AMC-Marcus-B-B-and-Empire.html
- [14] United States Movie Market Size, Share & Forecast to 2033 Research and Markets, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.researchandmarkets.com/report/united-states-film-motion-picture-market
- [15] Movie Box Office Insights Fuel Change in Entertainment Media Number Analytics, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.numberanalytics.com/blog/movie-box-office-insights-fuel-change
- [16] Driving Local Economies Motion Picture Association, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.motionpictures.org/advocacy/driving-local-economies/
- [17] The Impact of Streaming Services on Traditional Cinema The Hollywood News, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://thehollywoodnews.com/2025/01/10/the-impact-of-streaming-services-on-traditional-cinema/
- [18] THE IMPACT OF STREAMING SERVICES ON FILM DISTRIBUTION STRATEGY | The American Journal of Management and Economics Innovations, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://theamericanjournals.com/index.php/tajmei/article/view/5736
- [19] The Impact of Streaming Services on the Movie Industry: Transforming Entertainment as We Know It Social Cinema Motion Picture Institute, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://motionpicture.edu/socialcinema/2023/06/19/the-impact-of-streaming-services-on-the-movie-industry/
- [20] Streaming Platforms and Their Impact on the Film Industry, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://blog.filmtrack.com/industry-insights/streaming-platforms-and-their-impact-on-the-film-industry
- [21] The Changing Landscape of Film Distribution in the Streaming Eral Dylan Sidoo, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://dylansidoo.org/uncategorized/the-changing-landscape-of-film-distribution-in-the-streaming-era/
- [22] Impact of Streaming on Cinema Attendance Filmgrail, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://filmgrail.com/blog/impact-of-streaming-on-cinema-a ttendance/
- [23] The Impact of Streaming Services on Cinema Attendance How Theaters Are Adapting to a New Era | Budapest Reporter, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.budapestreporter.com/the-impact-of-streaming-services-on-cinema-attendance-how-theaters-are-adapting-to-a-new-era/
- [24] motionpicture.edu, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://motionpicture.edu/socialcinema/2023/06/19/the-impact-of-streaming-services-on-the-movie-industry/#:~:text=According%20to%20the%20Motion%20Picture,opt%20for%20at%2Dhome%20entertainment.
- [25] Survey: US viewers prefer streaming movies over cinema | Advanced Television, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.advanced-television.com/2025/03/06/survey-us-viewers-prefer-streaming-movies-over-cinema/

- [26] 2025 Digital Media Trends | Deloitte Insights, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://wwww2.deloitte.com/us/en/insights/industry/technology/digital-media-trends-consumption-habits-survey/2025.html
- [27] Theatrical Film vs. Streaming: Navigating the Post-COVID Entertainment Landscape A Market Research Perspective Fuel Cycle, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://fuelcycle.com/blog/theatrical-film-vs-streaming-navigating-the-post-covid-entertainment-landscape-a-market-research-perspective/
- [28] Streaming faces consumer pushback as social media captures youth attention Señal News, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://senalnews.com/en/data/streaming-faces-consumer-pushback-as-social-media-captures-youth-attention
- [29] How has the advent of streaming changed the way studios market their movies and TV shows, creating a more streamlined approach to marketing? | Feedboxx WFCN, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.wfcn.co/feedboxx/question/how-has-the-advent-of-streaming-changed-the-way-studios-market-their-movies-and-tv-shows-creating-a-more-streamlined-approach-to-marketing
- [30] Streaming vs. Cinema: Is Streaming Really Boosting the Movie Theater Experience? FilmTake, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.filmtake.com/distribution/streaming-vs-cinema-is-streaming-really-boosting-the-movie-theater-experience/
- [31] 2025 Film Industry Trends And Predictions Boiling Point Media, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://boilingpointmedia.com/2025-film-industry-trends-and-predictions/
- [32] When the film industry takes on the COVID-19 pandemic: My experience on the set, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.vet.k-state.edu/about/news-events-publications/OneHealth/Previous\_Issues/Vol14-Iss1/film-industry.html
- [33] How COVID-19 Has Affected The Film Industry | FSU Student Union, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://union.fsu.edu/movies/blog/COVID
- [34] Covid-19's Effect on the Film Industry Taein Ka UN SDG Goal 16: Student Work, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://pressbooks.montgomerycollege.edu/unsdggoal16studentwork/chapter/covid-19s-effect-on-the-film-industry-taein-ka/
- [35] COVID's Impact on the Film Industry: "The Biggest Shift in the History of Hollywood", accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.whartonume.com/blog/covids-impact-on-the-film-industry-the-biggest-shift-in-the-history-of-hollywood
- [36] Chart: Will the Box Office Ever Return to Pre-Pandemic Levels? | Statista, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.statista.com/chart/21425/annual-box-office-earnings-in-north-america/
- [37] Will movie theaters survive COVID-19? College of Media, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://media.illinois.edu/will-movie-theaters-survive-covid-19/

- [38] The Pandemic's Impact On The US Box Office, In One Bleak Chart Digg, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://digg.com/data-viz/link/pandemic-box-office-gross-impact-2024
- [39] The impact of social distancing on box-office revenue: Evidence from the COVID-19 pandemic PMC PubMed Central, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://pmc.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/articles/PMC7575864/
- [40] What Are the Most Profitable Movie Genres at the Box Office? Greenlight Coverage, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://glcoverage.com/2024/10/10/movie-genre-box-office/
- [41] Genres Movie Breakdown 1995-2025 The Numbers, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.the-numbers.com/market/genres
- [42] How to Master Movie Genres: The Ultimate Guide For 2025 FilmLocal, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://filmlocal.com/filmmaking/how-to-master-movie-genres/
- [43] Genre Trend Analysis of 2023 Film and Television | Parrot Analytics, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.parrotanalytics.com/insights/genre-trend-analysis-of-2023-film-and-television/
- [44] Seasonal changes in the genres of box office releases Ampere Analysis Insights, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://ampereanalysis.com/insight/seasonal-changes-in-the-genres-of-box-office-releases
- [45] Genres Movie Breakdown for 2025 The Numbers, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.the-numbers.com/market/2025/genres
- [46] April Insights From Cinelytic Streaming vs Box Office: What's Happening Beneath the Surface?, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://blog.cinelytic.com/april-insights-from-cinelytic-streaming-vs-box-office-whats-happening-beneath-the-surface/
- [47] Film Studio vs. Production Company Explained Robust Creative Solutions, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://ro-bust.co.za/what-is-the-difference-between-a-film-studio-and-a/
- [48] The Evolution of Hollywood's Business Model IndustryWired, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://industrywired.com/the-evolution-of-hollywoods-busin ess-model/
- [49] Major film studios Wikipedia, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Major\_film\_studios
- [50] What are the Major Film Studios Hollywood's Big Five StudioBinder, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.studiobinder.com/blog/what-are-the-major-film-studios/
- [51] Differences between studios? : r/movies Reddit, accessed on April 6, 2025, https: //www.reddit.com/r/movies/comments/lbjpu9g/differences\_between\_studios/
- [52] The Differences Between an Independent Film and a Studio-Backed Film timtortora.com, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://timtortora.com/the-differences-between-an-independent-film-and-a-studio-backed-film/

- [53] How is A24 able to make (and its filmmakers when it was only a distributor) high quality films under a \$8M Production budget Reddit, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.reddit.com/r/Filmmakers/comments/189owa1/how\_is\_a24\_able\_to\_make\_and\_its\_filmmakers\_when/
- [54] How A24 Disrupted the Film Industry | Producer's Toolbox, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.producers-toolbox.com/post/how-a24-disrupted-the-film-industry
- [55] How A24 found the hole in Hollywood that the big studios missed., accessed on April 6, 2025, https://blog.frame.io/2023/04/11/the-a24-success-story/
- [56] What is A24's business model? | Vizologi, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://vizologi.com/business-strategy-canvas/a24-business-model-canvas/
- [57] Studio Films vs Independent Films: Unveiling the Differences ejaz khan cinema, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://ejazkhancinema.com/studio-films-vs-independent-films/
- [58] A24: Disrupting the Industry With Audience-Driven Content Distribution | MediaFeed, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.mediafeed.us/blog-posts/hed-a 24-disrupting-the-industry-with-audience-driven-content-d istribution
- [59] A Brief History of A24 Films CanvasBusinessModel.com, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://canvasbusinessmodel.com/blogs/brief-history/a24-fil ms-brief-history
- [60] COLUMN: Behind A24's rise to Hollywood acclaim Indiana Daily Student, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.idsnews.com/article/2025/01/column-a24-studio-dominance
- [61] From Box Office Struggles to Cultural Icons: How A24 Redefined Success Adolfo Carreno, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://adolfocarreno.com/2025/01/15/from-box-office-struggles-to-cultural-icons-how-a24-red efined-success/
- [62] Making the Case: Amazon's Acquisition of A24|by Ella Wahlestedt|Medium, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://medium.com/@ellawahl/making-the-case-amazons-acquisition-of-a24-99ef8ae78ba2
- [63] A24 Wikipedia, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/ A24
- [64] The Key to A24's Continued Success 3Vision, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.3vision.tv/news-insights/the-key-to-a24s-continued-success
- [65] How to watch your favorite A24 films, from 'Babygirl' to 'The Brutalist' to 'MaXXXine', accessed on April 6, 2025, https://mashable.com/article/how-to-watch-a24-films
- [66] A24 Movies Will Stream Exclusively On Max As Studio Signs Multi-Year Deal Screen Rant, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://screenrant.com/a24-movies-streaming-where-max-hbo-deal/
- [67] List of A24 films Wikipedia, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List\_of\_A24\_films

- [68] Red One's budget of \$250M is the same as the combined budget of all 16 of A24's 2024 film releases Reddit, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.reddit.com/r/A24/comments/lhz0drj/red\_ones\_budget\_of\_250m\_is\_the\_same\_as\_the/
- [69] Civil War Will Probably Change A24, For Better Or Worse TheGamer, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.thegamer.com/civil-war-probably-change-a 24-bigger-budgets-action/
- [70] A24 Films SWOT Analysis CanvasBusinessModel.com, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://canvasbusinessmodel.com/products/a24-films-swot-analysis
- [71] Sales and Marketing Strategy of A24 Films CanvasBusinessModel.com, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://canvasbusinessmodel.com/blogs/marketing-strategy/a24-films-marketing-strategy
- [72] A24 | Production Company, History, Films, & Television Shows Britannica, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.britannica.com/topic/A24
- [73] A24: The Rise of a Cultural Conglomerate | The Generalist, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.generalist.com/briefing/a24
- [74] A Strategic Audit of A24 UNL Digital Commons University of ..., accessed on April 6, 2025, https://digitalcommons.unl.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1521&context=honorstheses
- [75] Top Lifetime Adjusted Grosses Box Office Mojo, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.boxofficemojo.com/chart/top\_lifetime\_gross\_adjusted/?adjust\_gross\_to=2019
- [76] 10 Data Points Revealing Factor Analysis Effects on Entertainment ROI, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.numberanalytics.com/blog/10-data-points-factor-analysis-entertainment-roi
- [77] 2025 Movie Content Financing: ROI Strategies Vitrina AI, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://vitrina.ai/blog/unlocking-roi-in-movie-content-fin ancing-strategies-and-trends-for-2025/
- [78] How is the success of films and TV shows measured? | IMDbPro, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://pro.imdb.com/content/article/entertainment-ind ustry-resources/featured-articles/how-is-the-success-of-films-and-tv-shows-measured/GLFTC8ZLBBUSNTM3
- [79] how movies actually make money (and why box office numbers aren't everything) Reddit, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://www.reddit.com/r/boxoffice/comments/li4mtbu/how\_movies\_actually\_make\_money\_and\_why\_box\_office/
- [80] Is video streaming hurting box office revenues at U.S. theaters? USP, accessed on April 6, 2025, http://www.repec.eae.fea.usp.br/documentos/Souza\_Nishijima\_Rodrigues\_20WP.pdf
- [81] A24 Films PESTEL Analysis CanvasBusinessModel.com, accessed on April 6, 2025, https://canvasbusinessmodel.com/products/a24-films-pestle-a nalysis